
Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of India Post Payments Bank Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanyinq financial statements of India Post Payments Bank

Limited ("the Bank"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the

Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,

and Notes to the Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') in the manner

so required for Banking companies and are in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India includlng the Accounting Standards prescribed under section

133 of the Act, read with rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended),
of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 l4arch 2024, and its profit and its cash flows

for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufflcient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Mafters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our oplnion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context:
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K Audit Matter Auditor's Res onse
1 IT Systems and Controls over

financial re orti
IT Controls Framework is identified as a

Key Audit Matter as the Bank's business
is highly dependent on the IT
environment as the Bank's financial
accounting and reporting processes are
highly dependent on Banking, Treasury
and other supporting software controls
such that there exists a risk that gaps in
the IT control environment could result
in the financial accounting and repofting
records being materially misstated.

The Bank uses several systems for its
overall financial reporting and there is a
large volume of transactions being
recorded at multiple locations daily. In
addition, there are increasing challenges
to protect the integrity of the Bank's
systems and data since cyber security
has become a more significant risk in
recent periods. Hence, due to the
pervasive nature and complexity of the
IT environment as well as its importance
in relation to accurate and timely
financial repofting, we have identifled
this area as a Key Audit Matter.
(Refer note no 35 & 34 of schedule 18 of
the accompanying financial statement).

2 Banking business activities of the
Bank are being carried out by the
Department of Post (DoP), on
behalf of the Bank, as Business
Correspondence (BC). Further,
software applications relating to
Banking business transactions of
the Bank has been outsourced to
third parties to implement, operate
and maintain.

l-We considered this matter to be of most
signifrcance in our audit as the materiality
and volume of the transactions involved,
balances in the financial statements and
the risks involved. Bankinq business i.e.
openlng of customer saving/current Bank
accounts, cash deposits, cash payments
/ transfer etc. for respective customer

As a part of our audit procedures for
review of the Bank's IT systems and
related controls for financial reporting:
We have planned, designed and carried
out the audit procedures and sample
checks, taking into consideration the
existing IT systems of the Bank. We
obtained an understanding of Bank's IT
environment including integration of
various systems to evaluate their
adequacy. This included testing that
requests for access to systems were
reviewed and authorised. We inspected
requests of changes to systems for
approval and authorisation.
Further, we also relied on the reports of
Information Security Audit conducted
by an external agency during the
financial year 2022-23 final report
submitted on 15.06.2023. In addition,
we tested the design and operating
effectiveness of certain automated
controls that were considered as key
internal controls over financial
reporting. Where deficiencies were
identified, we sought explanations
regarding compensating controls or
performed alternate audit procedures.

As per information and explanation
provided to us, the common services of
both the entities are being provided
through same set of the manpower of
DoP ( GDS/BC) , however, the software
licences used by both the entities are
different, we have relied on the basis of

&

test check performed us on the
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f Tare Uiing maOe Uy tne Gn on Ueha lf of
the Bank. Bankang business software
application have also been outsourced to
implement operate and maintain.
(Refer note no 34.l ofschedule 18 ofthe
accompanying fi nancial statement).

product wise reports / records prepared
by the Central Processing Centre (CpC)
of the Bank for the daily / periodic
settlement with respect to the
transactions relating to the Banking
business and accounting entries made
in CBS.

As per information and explanation
provided to us that the Bank had hired
services of OEMs of software/hardware
for the continuity of the services on
termination of previous SI/contractors.
We have relied on the basis of test
check peformed by us on product wise
reports / records prepared by the Bank
for the daily / periodic settlement
/reconciliations with respect to the
Banking transactions. We tested the
operating effectiveness of certain
automated controls that were
considered as key internal controls over
financial reporting. We have also relied
on the reports issued by the concurrent
auditor, report on risk-based audit
conducted by the management and
report on system security audit
conducted by an independent agency
for the financial yeat 20ZZ-23.

Termination of contract awarded for
entire Banking system integration
and its maintenance:
We considered this matter to be of most
significance in our audit due to the
security, confidentiality and integrity of
data relating to customers. Contract for
implementation of "dedicated and
customised technology platform"
through a System Integrator (SI) for
Banking operation was terminated prior
to the completion of the Contract due to
delayed in performance and/or non-
performance of the services as per the
clauses of the Contract / IvISA signed
between Vender and Bank.

(Refer note no 35 of schedule 18 of the
accompanying fl nancial statement).

4. Emphasis of Matter:

We draw attention to the:

i. note no. 32.2 of schedure rg of the accompanying financiar statements for non-
conducung physical verification of Fixed Assets since inception of the Bank and
management has now initiated process for the said exercise.

ii. note no. 6.3 of schedure 1z of the accompanying financiar statements regardingpolicy for depreciating software considering estimated life instead of- actua'i
useful/licenced life.

iii. note no. 34.4 of schedure 1g of the accompanying financiar statements regarding
capitalisation of 999 ATM on the basis of transfeiof ownership by Infosys- to th;
Bank against consideration paid by the Bank, however, income from such ATM' is
not being accounted for by the Bank.
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vi. note no.35 in the schedule no.18 of accompanying financial statements regarding
disputed liabilities of Rs. 163,47 crore, out of which Rs. 101.20 crore has been
accounted for as liability and Rs.62.27 crore (i.e. to the extent penalties deducted)
shown as contingent liability. The Performance Bank Guarantee (PBG) of Rs. 68.93
crore given by the Contractor have also been invoked and shown under other
liabilities & provisions. The Sl/Contractor had gone in the High Court of Delhi and
Court vide its direction dated gth February 2024, referred the matter for Arbitration.
Case is still pending.

Vii. foot note of schedule No. 10 of the accompanying financial statemenG regarding
payments in advance for extended warranties, though services against such
extended warrantaes would be availed by the Bank progressively only after
completion of normal warranty perrod ofone year. The such extended warranty has
also been capitalised.

Vlli.note no 30 in the schedule no 18 of the accompanying financial statements
regarding ad-hoc provision of Rs.69.87 crore against pay revision based on 12th
Bipartite Settlement ofthe Indian Bank Association (IBA), stated to have been made
considerinq the fact of para 4,2.3 of the Cabinet note dated 26.04.7022.

x. note no 39 in the schedule no 18 of the accompanying financlal statements
regarding implementation of the Vendor lvlanagement System for the tracking of
vendor-wise details is in the process.

\

iv, note no. 34.3 of Schedule 18 of the accompanying financial statements regarding
outstanding recoverable from DoP with respect to the payments against
expenditure stated to have been made by the Bank on behalf of DoP out of which
Rs. 26.89 crore provided for during the year.

v. note no. 34 of schedule 18 of the accompanying financial statements regarding
non-disclosure of transactions made between Bank and DoP, as Related Party
Transactions in term of exemption for such disclosure as per para 9 of the
Accounting Standard 18 issued by ICAI, as both the entities are under same
administrative ministry of the Govt. of India.
Para 3.13 of MoU signed between DoP & Bank on 4th November, 2022 stipulates"
maintain an arm's length relationship at all time with adequate ringfencing and
firewalls for uninterrupted operations between DoP and IPPB, without comingling
of data in accordance with RBI license conditions". However, certain transactions
are being made by the Bank with DoP on free of cost basis i.e. advances /
recoverable are free of interest lrrespective of the periods of outstanding of such
advances / recoverable and certain other services also provided by the Bank to DoP
on free of cost basis. The management of the Bank and DoP is in the process of
flnalising the MOU to address the issues.

ix. note no 38 in the schedule no 18 of the accompanying financial statements
regarding appropriation of the amount exceeding the limits of Rs.2 lacs from the
respective saving / current accounts of the customer not having post office saving
account (POSA) and parking it under other liabilities for a long period as there is no
automated facility of sweep-in in respectlve customer accounts when balance gone
down from Rs. 2 lacs. However, interest is being credited to customers account on
value date basis.



Xa. note no 40 in the schedule no 18 of the accompanying financial statements
regarding procurements are being made on nomination basrs.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

5, Other Information

The Bank's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form or assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with Governance.

6. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

(a) The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indla, including the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and provisions of section 29 of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and circulars and guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of
India ('RBI') from time to time. This responsibility also lncludes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventrng and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentatlon of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

(b)In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Bank's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.
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(c) Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Banks's financial
reporting process.

7. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements.

(a)our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material il
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these flnancial statements.

(b) As part of an audit in accordance with standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from erroT, as fraud may involve collusionl
forgery, intentional omissions, m isrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

' obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audrt procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)ii)
of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the ainI
has adequate internal financiar contrors system in prace and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we concrude that a materiar
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor,s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. our concrusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statementsl
including the disclosures, and whether the financiar statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

(c) we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significan-t audi['Rndin9"s, incruding any
significant deficiencies in internar contror that we identify during our audit.

(d)we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them arr relationships and other matteis that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related sifeguards.
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(e) From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest beneflts of such
communication.

8. Other Matters:

These financial statements include data/information of 650 Banking outlets
(including one branch) located on pan India basis which we have not visited and
relied solely on the information/explanations relating to their data provided by the
management at the Head Office of the Bank.

Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 included the data /
opening data on the basis of the financial statements for the year ended 3lst lvlarch
2023 which were audited by P.K. Chopra & Co., Chartered Accountants vide their
unmodified repod dated 23.06.2023, whose reports have been furnished to us by
the management and which have been relied upon by us for the purpose of our
audit of these financial statements.

I

Our conclusion on the financial statement and our report is not modified in respect of the
above matter.

9. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the Companies (Rules), 2014 (as
amended).

ii. As required by sub-section (3) of section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, subject
to the limitations of the audit indicated in above paragraphs, we report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found
them to be satisfactory;

b) the transactaons of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the
powers of the Bank;

c) Since the key operations of the Bank are automated with the key applications
integrated to the core Banking system, the audit is carried out at centrally as the
necessary records and data required for the purposes of audit are available therein.

iii. with respect to the matter to be included in the auditor's repoft under section 197(16)
of the Act, we repoft that since the Bank is a Banking company, as defined under the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949; the reporting under section 197(16) in relation to
whether the remuneration paid by the Bank is in accordance with the provisions of
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section 197 of the Act and whether any excess remuneration has been paid in
accordance with the aforesaid section is not applicable.

iv. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, we have considered the darection and sub-
directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India. We give our report in

the attached "Annexure A".

Further, as required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the
extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account, as required by law have been kept by the
Bank so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), to the extent they are not inconsistent with
the accounting policies prescribed by RBI;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the drrectors and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the
Act;

f) We have conducted audit of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Bank as on 31 l\4arch, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date and our repod annexed as
"Annexure 8".

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:
i. the Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations under schedule 12 of

the flnancial statements on its flnancial position as at 31 March, 2024;
ii. the Bank has made provision as at 31 March, 2024, as required under the

applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any,
on long-term contracts including derivative contracts and

iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Educatlon and Protection Fund by the Bank during the year ended
3t March, 2024.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the note no. 34.3 of schedule 18 , no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Bank to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("lntermediarles"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
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(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
bellef, no funds have been received by the Bank from any personls; or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding parties,'), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Bank shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
ldentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries and based on such audit procedures that
were considered reasonable and appropriate by us in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement

The Bank has not declared or paid Dividend during the year accordingly
the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable on Bank for the year under Audit.

The Bank has used such accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has been operated throughout the year for the transactions
recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not been tampered
with and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.

(i)

(.i)

For Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN.:000038N

sd/-
(CA C.S. Karki)
Partner
IY.No.:089896

UDIN : 24089896BKEQUy8321

Place: New Delhi
Date:26.06.2024
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AUDIT REPORT OF INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
2023-2024 PURSUANT TO DTRECTTONS UNDER SECTTON 143(5) OF THE

CoMPANIES ACT, 2013

1) whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If yes, the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated'

Ceftain software/application/Poftal are being used by the Bank for its different Banking

& related activities and recording the transactions which are not integrated/interfaced
with the Banking Solutions (CBS) and output of such software/application/Portal are

being entered manually in CBS including for daily calculation of CRR /SLR on the basis of
daily DDB hence, possibilities of human error could not be ruled out.

2) whether there is a ny restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write
off of debts /loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the
company's inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be
stated. Whether such cases are properly accounted for ? (In case, lender is a
Government Company, then the direction is also applicable for statutory
auditor of Lender Company).
As per information & explanations provided to us, there is no restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts /loans/interest etc. made by any lender to the
company due to the company's inability to repay the loan.
Further, it is a payment Bank therefore it is not permifted to make any loans/ advances
and hence there is no restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interests etc.

3) Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc) received / receivable for specific schemes
from Central/ State Government or its agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.
No Grant has been received during the year, hence the funds received/receivable for
specific schemes from Centraustate agencies were whether properly accounted
forlutilized or not as per its term and conditions is not applicable.

For Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN.:000038N

sd/_
(CA C.S. Karki)
Partner
M.No.: 089896

UDIN : 240898968KEQUY8321

Place: New Delhi
Date:26.06.2024

to

Annexure "A"



Annexure "B"

Independent Auditor's Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act')

1. In conjunction with our audit of the flnancial statements of India Post Payments Bank
Limited ('the Bank') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting CIFCoFR') of the Bank as at that
date.

2, Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
Internal Financial Controls:

The Eank's Board of Directors ls responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financaal controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Bank considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Frnancial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Bank's
business, including adherence to the Bank's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

3, Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank's IFCoFR based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ('the Guidance Note')
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethacal requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
ofthe IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining
an understanding of iFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufflcient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Bank's IFCoFR.

l)

The Annexure referred to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of India Post Payments Bank Limited on the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2024



4, Meaning oflnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting:

A Bank's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Bank's IFCoFR

include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the Bank; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting princaples, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Bank are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and

directors of the Bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regardinq prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Bank's assets

that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

5. Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the posslbility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR

to future periods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate
because of changes in condltions, or that the degree of compllance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

6, Opinion:

ln our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such lnternal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the

essential components of internal conlrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia.

For Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co
Chadered Accountants
FRN.: 000038N

sd/-
(CA C.S. Karki)
Partner
lY.No.:089896

UDIN : 240898968KEQUY8321

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26.06.2024
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( in Rs 000')

CAPITAL & LIABILITIES

Capital

Share Applicatlon Money

Reserves & Surplus

Deposits

Borrowings

Other Liabilities and Provisions

ASSETS

Cash and Balances with
Reserve Bank of lndia

Balances with Banks & l\,4oney

at call & short notice

lnvestments

Advances

Fixed Assets

Other Assets

sdt
(Pawan Kumar Singh)

Director (DlN 09434830)

Schedule

,| 16550000

2000000

-9620234

62923585

As at 31.03.2024

21050000

As at 3'1.03.2023

-9217856

115521920

3692152

732627 5

6

7

9333564

'136627628

7265033

29949675

88394493

4353854

76207205

6262434

19009366

76207205

3136

9

t0
11

TOTAL

4s991846

98

596447

4347414

136627628

Contingent Liabilities '12 642974
Bills lor Colleclron
Significant Accounting Policies 17
Notes to Financial Statements '18

(Schedules 1 to 18 form an intergral part of this financial statement)

sd/-
(Priyanka Bhatnagar)
Company Secretary

sd/-
(Anoop E S)

Chief Financial Officer

sd/-
(Navncet Kakkar)

ACB Chairman (DlN 03475842)

sdt
(Vandita Kaul)

Chairman (DlN 07854527)

As per our report of even date

For M/s Thakur, Vaidyanath Aayar & Co
Chartered Accountants - FRN 000038N

sd/-
(C.S. Karki )

Partner (Membership No. 089896)

sd/-
(R.Viswesvaran)

MD & CEO (DrN 10514859)

Dated: 26 06 .2024
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2

4

5

TOTAL



INDIA POST PAYME NTS BANK LIMITEO
PRO & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

('in Rs 000')

I. INCOME
lnterest earned
Other lncome

Year ended
31.03.2024

Year ended
31.03.2023

2190522
4870980

Schedu le

TOTAL

- EXPENDIT URE
lnterest expended
Operatrng expenses
Provisions and Contingencies

TOTAL

Net ProfiuNet Loss lor the year

Balance in Profit & Loss Account (Brought Forward)
Profit available for Appropriation

APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Reserves (Net) :

Statulory Reserve
Grant Account - Capital Reserve
lnvestment Fluctuation Reserve

Other Reserve
Special Reserve

Balance carried over to Balance Sheet

TOTAL

15
16

'1697360
'10036823

576348

940216
6461410

58267

'12552909

-94s7 449

-9357295

7661502

7459893

34237A

.9699673

-9357295

201609

-9827357

-9625788

85595

14559

50402

234a3

Significant Accounting Policies ,17

Notes to Financial Statements 18
(Schedules 1 to 18 form an intergral part of this financial statement)

S.l/-
(Priyanka Bhatnagar)
Company Secretary

sd/-
(Anoop E S)

Chief Financial Offacer

sd/-
(Navneet Kakkar)

ACB Chairman (DtN 03475842)

sdt
(Vandita Kaul)

Chairman (DlN 07 854527 )

As per our report of even date
For M/s Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co
Chartered Accountants - FRN OOO03BN

sd/-
(C.S. Karki )

Partner (l\rembership No. 089896)

l',1

Daled: 26 06 2024
Place: New Delh

6075759
6577'150

13
14

'1231053.1

-9625788

-9699673

sd/-
(Pawan Kumar Singh)

Director (DlN 09434830)

sd/-
(R.Viswesvaran)

MD & CEO (DtN 10514859)



INOIA POST PAYIVENTS BANK LIMITEO
Cash Flow Slatement

Amount (Rs in 000 s)

12023-241 12022-231
A Cash Flow lrom Operations

i) Nei Profil After Tax

Add: Provision for Tax (inculding defiered Tax)

Oep,ecialion on Fixed Assels

lncorporation Expenses Wnllen Off
Prior Penod llem Writlen Or
Less: Nel Amounl LlliliTed iiom G.ants

Operaling profil before changes in Operaling Assels &
Liabilil,es
i)Adtuslments for net change in Operating Assels &
Liabililies

Decrease/ (lncrease) in lnveslmenls (Net)

Decrease/ (lncrease) in oiher Assels iNet)
Decrease/ (lncrease) in Advances
(Oecrease)/ lncrease in Deposlis (Net)

(Dec.e6se)/ lncrease in Boffowinqs (Nel)

(Oecrease)/ lncrcase in Olher Liabililies lNel)
Tolai adjuslmenl for nei chang€ n Operaling Assels E

342378

576348

914726

201609

5426t

259476r)

,i)

(i)+(ii)

(ii,)

9146/2 2746A5

-42402U1

3555209

98

52598335

-16982383

1602766

15522

26006367

914672

1833398

2466

272199

2000000

2000000

4000000

532415

9a?125

8950340

4979710

11620247

13453685

8418265

8950340cash Flow used lrom Operations (i)+(ii)+( ii)

Nel Cash Flow used trom Operatrons A

B. Cash Flow used in lnvesting Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Nei Cash Flow used in lnvestina Activiles B

C Cash Flow generated kom Financing Acl vites

lssue oI Share Cap(al

Receipl of Share Applicaiion Money

Nel Cash Generated trom Finallcing Activilles C

Not Chang€s in Cash & Cash Equlvalent (A)+{a)+(C) D

Cash and Cash Equivalent at the beginning otlhe year
Cash and Salance with RBI
Balance with Banks & Money al Call & Short Nolice

r -1153685

2500000

-4014377

-4014377

82400

-82400

-, 2500000

11943308 12867940

6262434
190Q9366

Cash and Cash Equavaloni at lhe end ofth€ year
Cash and Balance wilh RBI
Balance wilh Banks E fi,loney al Call& Shod Notrce

/265033
29949675

25271400

2672A07
9730653

626203.1
19009366

r2403460

252t14003T211TOA

11943308 12867940
(Schedules 1 io 18 fo.m an inlergrai part ol this financial stalemen0

sd/
(Pnyanka Bhatnagar)
Company Secretary

sdi-
(Anoop E S)

Chief Financial Offlcer

sd/-
(Pawan Kumar Singh)

Director (DlN 09434830)

sd^
(Navneet Kakkar)

ACB Chairman (DlN 03475842)

sdt
(R.Viswesvaran)

l\lD & cEo (DrN 10514859)

sd/-
(Vandita Kaul)

Chairman (DlN 07854527)

As per our reporl of even dale
For I\,,1/s Thakur Vaidyanath Aryar I Co

Charlered Accounlants - FRN No 000038N

sdt
(C.S. Karki )

Partner ([.{embership No.089896)

lr



SCIlEDIJLES 10 THE ACCOUNTS (INDIA POST PAYMENIS AANK LIMITED)

{ in Rs 000)

As at 31.03.2024

TOTAL

5CHEOULE 2.RESERV€S A SURPLUS

235 50 00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10
€ach (P.ev ous Year 185.50 00.000
Eq!ity Shares ol Rs 10 each)

lssued E Subscrihcd
210 50 00,000 Eqlily Shares of Rs l0
each (Prev,ous Year 165.50 00,000
Eq! ty Shares ol Rs 10 eacfr)

210,50.00 000 Equrly Shares ol Rs 10
each (Prevous Year 165.50.00.000
Equity Shares ol Rs 10 each)

!_.9_tl!,19-ry..8".!9r'_9_

Addilion dunng Ihe year
Ded!ction dunng the year

!!.9eqLr4 Egle*u
a Reva uaton Reserve

Opening Balance
Addilion dunnq lhe year
Deduction dur nq the year

b Others (Grant AJc)
Openi.g Bala.ce
Addition dunng the year
Oeduclon (Ulils€d)during the yea.

23550000

As ar 31.03.2023

18550000

16550000

r6550000

16550000

23483

9699673

21050000

21050000

21050000

55956
85595

5554
50402

I41551

38042

9457449

2466

2466

lll. Revenue and Orh.r Reserue

lnvestmenl Fluctualion ReseNe

Addition dLrring the year
Lessr Trf to P E L AccoLrnt

Opening Aala.ce
Addinon during ihe Yea.

c. Exchange Fluctualion Reserve
Open'ng Balance

AddrAddnion dunnq the year (Net)
Less Withd.awn du.ing the year (Nei)

Opening Balance
Addilo. dunng the Year

Openrng Balance
Addition during ihe Year
Oeducl on duang the Year

23483
14559 23483

Vl. Balance in Profit A Loss Account

Torat tto Vt

t6

-927f856 -9620234

!e!Eos!E|..._ 9.lill+



SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (NOIA POST PAYMENfS BANX LIMITEO)
( in Rs 000')

seEEquLE 3, OEPOSTTq

A, I DEMAND OEPOSIIS

As at 31.03.2024

115521920

115521920

115521920

9333554

9333564

As at 31.03,2023

62923585

62923585

62923585

.1353854

4353854

6262034

6262034

II SAVINGS BANK DEPOSITS

IIIIERM DEPOSITS

209974

208495

115313425

209974

62713611

B. ( ) DeposG or bran.hes ln Indra
( ) Deposirs or branches olrside lndia

TOTAL of l. ll lll

SCHEDIIT E 4. BORROWINGS

l. Borowaogs in lndia

(i) Reserve Bank ol lndia
(ii) other Banks
(iil) Oiher hstilullons and Aqencies

ll. Borowings Oursidc lndia

TO IAL oll,ll

Sec!red aorowings incllded in l& llabove

9qlEa!!Eli stlELUABIITM-A!Q !8Qy!S!Q!g

l. Bills payable

ll. hler'olfice adjushenrs (ne!)

lV. Others (hcluding Provisions)

SCHEOULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

l. Cash in hand ( mcludrng Foreign

ll Ealance wilh Reserve Eant ot lndia
(!) n cunent a@u.r
(i ) rn Orher Accounts

6505033
760000

2972434
32S0000

TOTAL OI I II

7265033

7265033

l-)



SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS {INOIA POST PAYMENIS BANK LIMITEO)
('ln Rs 000 )

scHEouLE 7- BAI_^!!QE!| Wtnt BANXS A
MONEY AT CALL C SHQSIliOT]gE

(i) Barance wllh Banks

(a) h Curent accounts
(b) ln Other Oeposit accounrs

(ii) 
^,loney 

at Cail and Sho( Norice

(a) wirh Banks
(b) wiih Other tnst[utons

TOTAL(i&ii)

(,) ln C!rreni accounts
(ir)ln Othe, Deposn accounts
(iii)Money al Catt& Shod Notice

123f5
29937300

As ar 31.03.2024

29949675

29949675

29949675

88394493

88394493

88394493

18047
16393500

As at 31.03.2023

2597819

r9009366

19009366

ir5991846

45991846

45991846

2597819

TOIAL(i.iEi,i)

GRAND TOTAL ( I& II)

SCHEOULE 8 - INVESII'ENTS

l.lnvestmenG in lndi. in

(i) Gover.mentSecuit€s

(,) Other appmved securiries

(iii)Shares

(rv) Debentu'es and Eonds

(v) hveslment rn Slbsrdrar€s/ Joinl Venlu.es

(vi) othels
(MulualFunds I Commercial paper elc.)

TOIAL ot I

ll. lnvestments out6ado tndia
(i)Governmeni Securilies (inctuding tocat author lies)

{ir) lnvesrmenr in Subsidiaries/ Joini Ventures abroad

(iii) Olher invesioents

TOTAI ol ll

GRAND TOrAI ot Il), l[)

tl



SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS {INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED)

( in Rs 000')

As aI31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

A. i) Bills Purchased and dEcounted

r, Cash C.edits, overdrans and
loans repayable on demand

iii) Tem Loans (Slafi)

Total

SCHEDULE 9 - ADVANCES

(a) Bllls purchased I discoLrnted

(c) Olhers

GRAND ToTAL of c (l) & c (ll)

B ) Secured by Tang ble Assets
(nc !ding advances aga nst book debls)

) Covered by BanUcovl.Glarantees

Totai

c ( l) Advances in rnd a

i) Prority Seclor

ii) P!b ic Sector

iii) Banks

Tolal

C. ( ll). Advances outside l.da

98

98

98

98

98

98

1

98



SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS lINOIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED)

( in Rs 000')

Premises (including Land)

'Al.osi as on 31st March oi the preceeding year
-Addtions during lhe year
Less :Oeductions during lhe year
Less :Oepreciation lo dale

ll. Other Fixed Assets (rncluding tur.lure
& lixlures)

'Al cost as or 31st N4arch of the preceeding year
-Additions during the yeaa
Less :Deduclions during the year
Less :Deprecialion to date

148r 382
3344895

4575
1t43573

1440292
76107
35017

921780

S.IEQUI,E 10 - FrXEp aSsErS

lll- Computer Software

TOTAL OF I,IIE III

SCIIEOULE ,lI - OTHER ASSETS

As a|31.03.2024

3078129

614023

3692152

As at 31.03.2023

559602

36845

594447

Al cosl as o. 31st March ol the p.eceedinq year
'Add(ons dudng lhe year
Less :Oeductons duing the year
Less iDeprecialion to date

1785099
669358

1774/81
6318

1840.134 114a254

I rnleFoffice adjushents (neo

lll Tax paid in advance/tax deducled
al source (nei ofprovisions)

lV. Stationery aod Stamps

V. Non Banking assels acqurred ifl
satisfaction of claims

Vl. Delered Tax asset (nel)

Vll Security Deposils

Vlll. OOP Capital Commitmenl

lX. ReceNable from DoP under lT 2.0

X. Recorvable irom NPCI& Vendors

xl. olhers

1157752

174693

341840

41180

1524U5

104493

39327

952221

2A15

3370629

1808332

52466

39133

1081290

6001

977172

SCHEDULE 1? . CONTINGENI LIABILIIIES

I Clarms against the Bank not acknowtedged

7326275

6?3291

4347414

636

25a0

ll. Liablrty ror padly pad in1/esimenls
lll. Liability on accounr of oursranding

lorward €xchange co.kacts

lV. Guarantees given on behatl olconstituents
(a) ln hdia
(b)Ourside lndia

V. Acceplances. Endorsemenls and
Olhe. obligations

Vl. Olhe. ilems fo.which lhe Bank,s
enlingently liable

i) Dispuled Tax Liabilllies
ii) Olhers

17143
2500

TOTAL ol I to Vl
lleldl pdnl qa ?eo]s.4elde 

'3)

&o

642974 3136



SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNIS 0NolA POSI PAYMEI'ITS BAiIK LIMITED)
( in Rs 000')

SCHEOULE l3.INTEREST ANO OLV]OENOS EARNEO
3'1.03.2024 31.03.2023

l. lnteres/discounlonAdvances/Bills

ll. lncome on lnvestments

lll. lnteresl on balances wilh Reserue Bank oI
lndia & olher inter bank lunds

TOTAL of I to lV

3

4418319

1657437

2063269

726356

443

2790522

I Comm ssion, Exchange & Broke€ge

6075759

6535713

1,1559

ll. P.ofil on sale ol lnveshenls
Less:Loss on $le ol lnvestmenls

lll. Pro{il on Revalualon of lnveslmenls
Less:Loss on Revaluation ol lnvestments

19286
4727

23525

,1788673

23443

8396

42

lV Prolit on sale ofland
b{ridings and other assers
Less:Loss on sa e ol land
buidings and other assels

V ProlI on Exchange T.afsacton
Less:Loss on Exchange Transaclon

Vl. lncome earned by way of dividends elc
lrom subsrd aries/compan es and/orloint
ventures abmad/in lndia

403

8399

3

Vll. Recruahent lncome

Vrll. Recoveryfiom employees on Sepe.alion

lx. Miscellaneous lncome

TOIAL of I to lX

8059

863

17912

3944

3867

42617

6577150 4870980

SCHEDULE 14. OTHER INCOME



SCHEDULE 15. INTERESI EXPENDEQ

SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS {INOIA POST PAYIVENTS BANK LIMITED)
( in Rs 000')

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1561327

136033

934406

5810

l. lnleresl on Deposiis

ll lnleresl on Reserve Eank ol lndia/
inieFbank borowings

lll. Otherc

TOTAL of I, ll, lll 1697360 940216

SCHEOULE 1O . OPERATING EXPENSES

I . Paymeni lo and provjsions for empioyees

ll. Ront Taxes and Lighlrng

lll. Printrng & Stationery

lV. Adverlisement & Publicity

V. Deprecialion on Fixed Assets

Vl. Directors Fees. allowances and expenses

Vll. Auditors fees and expenses

lX. Postage,Teleg.ams,Telephones, etc.

X. Repaks & i,laintenance

Xll. P.ofessional Fee

Xtll. GST Expenses

XlV. Sl Cosl

XV. Recruilment Expendrlure

XVI Training Expenditure

XVll. Outsourcing Expenses

xvlll. Travelling and Conveyance

XlX. Commission paid lo DoP/ lncentiv€ to BC

XX. Tlansaciional Charges Paid

XXl. Oiher expenditure

TOTAL of lto XXI

3727573

9217

81179

12972

914672

13193

1'164

496

649922

62124

126209

2ta2a

212633

791015

22354

25275

157011

95132

1471008

1559719

76131

2128/29

6588

31761

32143

274665

38/,2

1266

115

520660

26516

90538

uo21

130303

363740

4257

9313

116167

75516

1157394

404226

499r0

10036823 6461410

nc)



SCHI.]DUI,I' 17

SIG\ I I'I ('A\T,ACCOL \t-t\c Pot_tctt.s

l. llackground and naturc ofoperations

The Bank was incorporated on l7'h August 201 6 rjndcr Companies Act 201l. The bank
received Payncnt Bank license as required undcr Section 22( I ) of tianking Regulation
Act, 1949 on 20'h January 2017. IPPU was launched as a pilot project on 30 January
20lTatRanchi (Jharkhand ) and Raipur. (C hhattisgarh ). IppB lras cxpandcd its strcngth
across India covering posl oUices. through a network of I Branch and 649 tlanking
Outlets.

'fhc Bank is cngaged in providing various type of linancial scrviccs to the rural, poor
and underserved and unscrved class to help them be economically self-reliant. Bank
otl'crs sen'iccs such as currcnt and savings accounts, rcmittances, business
correspondent, door step banking, citizen centric services. mobile banking, AEpS. bill
payments, and Third party product distribution.

As the Payl'tents Bank cannot lend to any penon except thcir own employees.
accordingly, all thc disclosures penaining to advanccs have nol becn made.

'fhe bank has bcen includcd in the Sccond Schedule to the Rescrvc Bank of India Act.
1934 r'ide Notification DBR. NBD. (pB- lppB). No. 9980 /16.t:t.2151 20t8_ t9 dated
May 27, 20 I 9 and publishcd in the Gazclc of India (parr I II - Scction 4) dared June 22-
Junc 28. 20 19.

'Ihc Financial Statcment is presentetl in Indian Rupccs in thousands (.in Rs.000.)and
in the format as prescribed under Banking Regulatior Act, i949

2. Ilasis of Prrpn rrtion:

'fhe financial statements are prepared tbllowing the going concern concept, on
historical cost basis ard conf'orm to thc Generaly Acccpted Accounting principles
(GAAP) in India rvhich encompasses applicable statutory pro\ isions. stalurory
rc'quircment prescribcd under Banking Regulation Acr 1949, regularory nonns
prescribed by the Rcserve Bank oflndia (RUI) fronl timc to time, notified Accounting

p\j

India Post Pavments Bank (IPPB) was setup under the Department of post, Ministry of
Communication with 100% cquity ou,ned by Covernment of India. The f'undamcntal
mandate of IPPB is to become the most accessible. aflordable and trusted bank fbr the
corrrron man irr India, rcntoving barriers tbr the unbanked and rcdLrcing oppurtunity
cost to the underbanked. and in doing so. promote thc adoption ofcasltless transactions
in a predonrrnantly cash ceonomy.



Standards (AS) issued undcr Scction 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, read together

with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, to the extent applicable
and current practices prevailing in thc banking industry in lrrdia. -fhc accounting
policies adopted in thc preparatiofl ol financial statemeflts are consistent with those

lbllowed in thc prcvious ycar unless other wise stated.

3. Use of Estimates

The preparation offlnancial statements requires the managcnlcnt to make estilnates and

assumptions in the reported amounts ol'asscts and liabilitics (including contingent
liabilities) as on date of the financial statenrents and thc rcported income and expenses

for the rcporling period. Management believes that the estimates uscd in thc prcparation

ofthe linancial statements are prudent and rcasonable.

Any revision to the accounting cstimates is recogrised prospectively

4. Revenue Recognition

Revenuc is rccogniscd rvhen reasonable ght 01'r'ecovcry is cstablishcd and lr'hcn no

signifi cant unceftainty exists regarding realisation of consideration.

4.1 lnterest income are lecognised on an accmal basis. lnterest income on discounted
instrument is recogniscd over the tenure ofthe instrument.

4.2 Cornmission incomc &Service charge is recognised on completion of provision ol
sctalces

4.3 AII other income is accountcd on realisation basis

4.4 Intcrost and operating expcnscs are accounted on accruai basis

5. Investments

5.1 Classification

In accordance with the RBI guidelines on investment classilication and valuation, all
investmcnts are olassified as "Hcld for Trading" ('HFT'). "Availablc for Sale" ('AFS')
and Held to Maturity ("HTM") at the tiDre of its purchase. lnvestments are lirfiher
classified under six groups (a) Govemment Sccuritics (b) Other Approved Sccurities
(c) Shares (d) Debentures and Bonds. (e) lnvestments in Subsidiaries Joint Venturcs (l)
Other lnvcstmcnts lor the purposcs of disclosure in thc Balance Sheet.

s'1



5.2 Basis of Classification

Sccuritics that alc principally acquired rvith thc intention to sell uirhin 90 days frorr
the date of purchasc are classificd under HFI' category. Invcstmcnts which thc Bank
intends to hold till maturity are classillcd as HTM securities. Investments which are not
classified in above categories are classilled under AFS category.

The Bank lollows 'Settlement Date' accounting for recording purchase and sale
transactions of sccurities, cxcept in the casc of equity shares where 'Tradc Datc'
accounting is followed

5.3 Acquisition Cosl

a. Brokerage, commission, Sccurities Transaction Tax (STT) etc. paid in connection with
acquisition of securities are treated as revenue cxpenses uplront and are recognised in
the Profit and loss account and cxcludcd from cost.

b. The broken period interest paid to the seller not been capitalised as part of cost and
treatcd as an iten of cxpenditure undcr Prot'it & Loss account in rcspcct of investment
in government securities and approved securitics.

c, Cost is detcrmincd on thc weighted averagc cost method for all categories of
investment.

Investments classit'ied under AF S and IIF-[ categorics are rnark to market as per RBI/FBIL
guidclines

Trcasury Bill being discounted instrument are valucd at carrying cost.

lnvestments classified under HI M category are carried at their acquisition cost and is not
marked to ntarket. Ifacquisition cost is tnore than lace valuc, the prenrium arising out of
difference benveen face valuc and acquisition cost shall bc amortised over the period
rcrnaining to maturity. (a) Thc arroniscd amount shall bc reflccted in'Schedule l3 _
lnterest Eamed: Item II Income on Investments,, as a deduction. (b) The book value of
thc security shall continue to be reduced to the cxtcnt of rhe amount amortiscd during the
relevant accounting period

Equity shares valued at market price, if quoted. othcrwise at breakup value of the Shares
on the basis of latcst available Balancc Shcct.

Net depreciation in the value, compared to the Book Value, if any in the six groups as
pcr balancc shcet classification. is charged to the profit and l,oss account. Thc nct
apprcciation if any is ignorcd.

qro)

5.4 Valuation



REPO and REvEILS[. REPO transactions

As per RIll guidclincs, REPO and Rcverse REPO transactions in govemmcnt securltles

are reflected as borrowing and lending transactions respectively Borrowing cost on repo

transactions is accountcd lbr as intcrest expensc and rcvcnuc on re\crse repo transJctions

is accounted as intetest income.

5.5 Disposal of lnvestment
Profit or loss on sale of investments in any category is taken to Profit and Loss account

but, in case of protit on sale of inYestments in "Held to Maturity" category, an

equivalent amount (nct of taxes and amount requircd to be transfened to Statutory

Reserve) is appropriated to "Capital Reserve Account"

6 Fixed Assets

Cost includes cost o[ purchase and all expenditure such as site preparation, installation

costs and proltssional ltes incurred on the asset till the time of capitalization. Subsequent

expenditure/s incurred on the assets are capitalised only when it increases the future

bencfits from such asscts or their functioning capability.

6.1 Fixcd asscts are stated at historical cost less accumulatcd deprcciation/amortisation.

rvherever applicatrle.

6.2 Software is capitalized and clubbcd undcr lntangiblc assets (Computer Software) in

Fixcd Asscts schedule.

6.3 DEPRECIATION
Depreciation is being clrarged over the estimated useful lit'e (as mentioned in the table)

ofthe assct on a straight-linc basis leaving residual value ofRe.l

A. Since no rates ol depreciatiou on ltxed assets have been prescribed by the Banking

Regulation Act, 1949, the provisions of Schedule ll to thc Companies Act,20ll is

followcd by IPPB

r\sset Estimated uselul lil'c
specilied under Schcdu le lI
of thc Conr anies Ac 20ll

Owncd Prerniscs 60

Ol-flce cqulpment 5 years
I--urnilurc and littin 10 cars
Motor Vchicles E clus
+ Soflware are being depreciared as pcr the above csliliatcd lil'e instea<J ofthe period ofthe licence

Computcrs (including Mobile Phones.
Bionetric Deviccs and Softu arc+

3 years

Autonrated Teller Mach ines 'ATMs'
Electrical e u1 lncnt

LIL lnent
6 ycarsServers, rorrters. netu'ork and related lT

cars

arsl5
t0

el

I



B

C

D

t',

In casc of acquisition or disposal of assets, dcprcciation is charged proportionatcly

based on the number of days the asset has been used during the year.

Asscts costing up to Rs.5,000,r are lully dcpreciatcd in the ycar of purchasc except

dcvices used by BCs such as Mobilc Phones and Biometric Dcvices.

Fixed Assets purchased out of Covernment Crant is fully depreciated in the year of
acquisition lcaving residual value of Re. I .

ln case ol rcvalued/impaired asscts, depreciation is provided ovcr the remaining usctul

lil'e of the assets with ret'erencc to revised assets values.

7 Employee Benelits
Thc salary structurc lor ot'llccrs in larious scalc at lndia Post Payrncnts Uank (IPPB) is
govcmcd by thc service rules of Bank. Thc remuncration is in linc with the salary structure
lollowcd by Public Sector Banks.

Employces on dcputation at IPPB arc govcmcd by thc Bank's Dcputation Policy and thc
Dcpartmcnt of Pcrsonnel and Training (DOPT) guidelincs. The cmployees on deputation
havc thc option to choosc betrvecn Pav at their parcnt Organisation and IPPB Pay.

The rerluneration otTered to MD& CEO who is considcred as thc material risk taker
includcs fixed pay in linc with 7th CPC and variablc pay as approvcd by the Board. Thc
salary adheres to the Department of Personnel and Training (DOP-I) guidelines and is

approved by the RBI.

Regular employees are covered in the group medical insurance. group tenn insurance and

group accident insurance schcmes.

I cnniual Bcrlctlls

i)

lr)

Provident Fund: All cligible ernployees who joined up to 30.09.2018 are

covcrcd undcr the Employccs Providcnt Fund. Providcnt Fund is a Dcfined
Contribution Plan in lrtich both thc ernploycc and the Bank contribute monthly
at a prc-detennined rate. Contribution to provident f'und arc recognized as

expense. These contributions are renritted to EPFO.

Nery Pension Scheme (NPS): All eligible enrployees who joined on or after
0l . 10.201 8 are covered urrder Dcfined Contributory Pension Schcne (DCPS).

ln respect of such employces the bank contributes l0ozr of the Basic Pay plus

Deanress Allowance which is increased to l4%r w.c f I l.l 1.2020. TIre

expenditure thcleof is chalgcd to Profit and [.oss account and the Bank has no

further liability beyond the contribution to the llnd on this account.

9-)



i' ) Compensation tbr abscncc on Privilcgc Leave: Thc cmployees ol thc bank arc
entitled (o compensated absence on account of privilege leave as pcr the leave

rules. The bank measures the long tenn expected cost of compensated absence
as a Icsult of the unuscd entitlement that has accunlulatcd at thc balancc shect
date bascd on actuarial valuation.

8 Taxcs on lncome

Income tax expcnse is the aggrcgate antoullt of current tax and defened tax expensc
incurred by thc Bank. The currcnt tax expensc and del'erred tax expense are determined
in accordance w.ith the provisions of the Incomc Tax Ac(, I 961 and as per Accounting
Standard 22 - Accounting [or Taxcs on Income respectivcly.

Def'errcd Tax adjustments conrpriscs ofcltangcs in the delerred tax assets or liabilities
during the ycar. Dcf'crred tax asscts and liabilitics are recognised by considering the
impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting incorre for the
current year, and carry forward losses. Del'encd tax assets and liabilities are rneasured
using tax rates and tax laws that have bccn cnacted or substantively cnacted at the
balance shcct datc. Thc impact 01'changes in def'erred tax assets and liabilities is
rccognised in thc profit and loss account. Dclcrrcd tax assets are recognisetl antl re-
assessed at each rcporting date. based upon management's judgment as to $.hether their
realisation is considered as reasonablv/vinuallv ccrtain.

9 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENI' I,IABILITI ES AND CONTINGENT ASS]]TS

ln contbrmity \.!'ith AS 29, "Pror isions. Contingent Liabilitics and Contingcnt Assets,,,
issucd by the Il]stitute of Chartered Accountanrs ol'lndia, the Bark recognises
provisions only whcn it has a prcsent obligation as a result of a past cvcnt. and would
rcsult in a plotrablc outflow ofrcsources embodving economic benefits will bc rcquired
to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estinrate ofthe amount ofthe obligation can
bc made.

Contingcnt Asscts are not recognised in thc financial statcrncnts

2g

iii) Gratuity: The Bank provides gratuiry to all eligible cmployecs. The bcnefit is in
the fontr of lump sum payments to vesred employees on retirement, on death
while in onploymenl, or on resignation or on ccssation of employrrent, fbr an

amount cquivalent to l-5 days' basic salary payablc for cach complcted year of
scrvicc, subjcct to a ntaxirnum prescribed as per Thc Paymcnt ol'(;ratuity Act
1972. Vcsting occurs upon completion of tive year.s of scrvice.



l0 Accounting for Gov€rnment Grants

As per the mandatc, the grant has been sanctioned by thc Govemnrent fbr purpose of
furtheling financial inclusion by India Post Payments Bank Ltd through provision of
Al'Ms/Micro-ATMs/PoS and lbr crnerging tcchnologies solution for providing cash-
out facilities, capacity building of villagc post olfices, strcngthening cash management
systems at village post offices, and conducting financial Iiteracy camps. Board in terms
of resolution dated July I 7, 20 I 7 approved broad guidelines and pattems tbr utilization
o[ Grant. Accordingly. the Grant received has been treated as shareholders lund and
crcdited to capital reservcs. As such, thc bank is adopting the Capital Approach method
as per AS-12 on Govemment Grants. The Grant is utilised as per Board approved
policy.

11 Impairment of Assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed for impairment. whenever eyents or changes
in circumstalces indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required. An impainnent loss is recogniscd whenever thc
carrying a[r]ount olan asset exceeds its recoverable amounl.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the rcvised carrying amount ofthe asset over
its rcmaining useful lif'e. An impaimrent loss is only reverscd to the extcnt that the assct,s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have becn tletermincd if
no impairment Ioss had previously been rccognised.

l2 Operating Lease

Leascs wherc the lessor effectivcly retains substantially all thc risks antl benefits of
ownership over the lease term are classified as operating lease. Lease payments for assets
takcn on opcrating leasc are recognized as an expensc in the profit and Loss Account as
per the terms of the lease.

Bg
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NOTES TO ACCoTJN'tS

l RegulatorY Capital

& Composition of Regulatorv Capital

Percentage of the shareholding of the Government of
India in thc Bank

Arrounl of cquity capital raiscd duling the ycar'

Amount of Additional 'l'icr I Capital raised. of which:
Perpetual Non-Curnulativc Prcfcrcncc Shares ( PNCPS)

Pcryctual Debt Instrument (PDl)
Amount of Tier 2 capital raised, of which:
Dcbt Capital Instruments:

Prcfcrcncc Share Capital lnstrumcnts: (Pcryetual

Curnulalivc Pret'erence Shares (PCPS)/ Rcdccnrable

Non-Cumulativc Prcfcrcncc Shares (RNCPS) l
Redeemable Cumulative l)reterence Shares (RCPS))

Rs irr 000's

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

* After deducting Crant, Delerlcd fax Asscts and Colnputer Softwarc.

!919: As per RBI guidance notc DOR.ORG.REC.2 I / 14.l0.001I 2024-25 Dated 30.04.2024 on
"Cuidance Notc on Operational Risk Managcmcnt and Operational Rcsilicnce", Payments
Bank are presentlv not required to maintain a separatl3 regulatory capital lor operational risk.
Accordingly, Bank's capital adcquacy position shall be computcd & reported as per thc
regulatorJ repofiing fbmat i.c. Rctum on Capital adccluacy as pcr Bascl I norms (RCA l)
which includes capital charge tbr trading book - nrarket risk and banking book credit risk
only. As such. Risk Weighted Assets and CRAR are reported above are as per Basel I
guidelines.

S No. Partitulars 31.01.2024 3 r.03.2023
I 9595714 506 06Corrnron Equity Tier I Capital*

Additional Tier I capital/ Other Tier 1 capital

s59571,1

lv

Tier I capital (i + ii)
Tier 2 capital I8042 2l4li3
Total capital ( l icr I r'l icr 2) 9633776 50rJ45lt9

\l

,vlll
5 6.70

892 6679

5 6.70

lx

Total Risk Weightcd Asscrs (RWAs)

CET I Ratio (CET I as a pcrccntagc of RWAs) / Paid-

up sharc capital and reserves as percentagc ol RWAs

Ticr I Ratio (Tier I capital as a percentagc oi'RWAs)
Tier 2 Ratio (Tier 2 capital as a pe rce ntagc ol'RWAs)

r 7561 ri50

54 6,1

51.64

o)2

\
0.l6

56.96

\t

Capital ro Risk Weightcd Assets Ratio (CRAR) (Total
Capital as a percentagc o,'RwAs)

5.1.86

r 3.01Le\,erage Ratio 13.29

xll
t00.00%

xlll 4500000

\l\

Nit

Nil

100.0091,

2000000

Nit

Nil

3o

506 r 106II.

\]l.

I

I



I Drawdown from Reserves

There was no amount withdrawn front Reserves during the Fy 2023-24 arrrJ Fy 2022-23

c. Appropriation to Reserves

. Statutory Rtserve - As mandated by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, all banking

companies incorporated in India shall create a reserve fund. out of the balance ofprofit
ol each year as discloscd in thc profit and loss account and before any dividcnd is

declared and transfer a sum equivalent to not less than twenty-five per cent of such

profit. Accordinglv, Bank has transferrcd an amount of Rs.8.56 crore tiom curent year

Net profit (Previous Year: Rs. 5.04 crore).

Inyestment Fluctuation Rescrve (lFR) - Rescrye Bank of India vidc circular

DBR.No. BP.BC. I 02/21 .04.048/20t'7 - I tt datcd April 2, 201 8 advised banks to creatc an

lnvesrment Fluctuation Reserve (lFR) with effect from Fy 2018- 19. Accordingly. an

amount not less than the lower ol net profit on sale of investments during the ycar or

net profit for the year less Inandatory appropriations shall be transferred to the IFR.

until thc amount of IFR is ar lcasr 2 percent ol'thc HF'T antl AFS portlblio. on a

continuing basis. During the year ended March 31. 2024, tsank has transferred an

amount of Rs.l.,16 crore to IFR (Previous ycar: Rs.2.35 crore). IFR as on March 31,

2024 constitutes 0.04% (Prs ious Year: 0.05%) ofclosing balancc ofinvestments under

AFS and HFT category.

3l
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2. I nvestmcnts

a) Composition of lnvestment Portfolio
As al 3l'' March 2024

l)xrlirulnr\

Lcss: Provision lbr non-
pcrlirrmrrr: rnr,eslmcnts (l

Less: Provision lbr
dcprcciation and NPI

C,oss

\PI
\ct

(it'os:

\er

Less: Provisi,,n ti)r

Lcss: Provision IoI
deprcciatron and NPI

Rs in 000's
ln\cstnr(nls in ln(li:r In\'cstnents outsklc lIdin

Covernme
Il

Sccurilies

Other
Approved
Securitics

Shars l)chr fur.s
and B0nds

()lhrr\
Suhridiari.,s
and/or joint
lCnlUres

Total
inrrcstmtnts

in India

Covernment
srcuritirs
linrluding

local
authoritics

Subsidiaries
rnd/or joint Otltrrs

Total
Inl csltnents

oulside lndia

I otnl
ln\ rstnreDts

Held to Nlaturily

100')f l 0 l) 0 0 0 t009r.l 0 {) l) 0 I00.)11.1

1)i) 1l l) 0 (l r) lt

l009lll l) (l (l 1) 0 t009Nl t) 0 1) t0()q8.1

 trihhlr li,r Srrl(

8779r8l5 {) l) 0 {) 1) Ii779}{1a r) l) l) li779ll 5

0 {) 1) () rl U lt

s77938l5 (l 0 1) It779.18I5 () 0 ll779llfls

Hrld li)r'l rrding
( iros\ (l 0 {) 0 ll 0 0 1) 0

o D 0 1) 0 {) rl (i 1) 0 iJ

0 lj
1 0 0 l) 1996950

o 0 0 () {) 0 0 0 c t)'I0lrl lnrcslrDcnls 8u394491 0 0 (l 0 0 88I()449t 0 0 0 0 8t3-r9.l.tq3
Less: ProvrsioD ti)r non-
pcrlbr,ming i !cslmcnls t) 0 0 0 0 0 {) (l 0 0 0

0 t) 1) 1l ll 0

t)

1) 0 (J

\cl lllt-19Jt9l 0 t) {r 0 0 li ti-'t 91.r 9.1 0 0 0 0

I dcpreriati(nr irnd NPI

I

I

.1996e5

88-1i){.193



)

As a1 3 l'r March 2023 Rs in 000's
lnr.\i trr.nr\ in l dix ID\ rnnr(nr\ r) u i \id( Indir

'l-olal

lnvrstmcnts
(;orernnrcDl

Srcuritics

Othrr
Approved
Securities

Sharrs
Drbrnturcs
and Ronds

Subsidiaries
and/or joi$t
vtnturrs

()lhers
'Iotal

inveslmenls
in India

(;ovcrnmcnt
\rcuriticri
(inrludinS

local
aulhorilics)

Subsidi.rrirs
:rnd/or joinl (Jlhrrs

T(,lrl
Inr eslmenls

outsidc India

llcld to Nlrturitr''

101950 1) 0 0 0 0 101950 0 0

Lcss: I'rovision lbr

inveslnrcnts (NPI)
1l tl 0 i) ll 0 1l ll 0

l0te50 L) 1) r) l0 tg51) rl ll 10r950

Avrilnhle for Srle

6Ltxs .15319t96 {) i) 0 0 1588qE96 1) 1) 0 1S8lt9lt96

[,css: l'rovisi(nr lbr
dcprecidion and NP1

0 ll 0 0 0 1) 0

Nct 4 5llN98')() {) 0

Il€ld lilr l'ra(ling

1i 0 0 0 0 0 0 {) 0

ll 1) 1l i) 1) l) 1) 0

\cl 0 {) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 t) 0

(i L] rl 0 (l f) 0 0 t) ll l)

'l'olal IIt (sl n)rnts (l t) 0 1l 0 0 (l ll 0

Lcss: Provision ibr
non-pcrlbrnring
investnrenls

0 0 t)

Lcss: l'rovision for
dcprecialion and Nl'l

o {) 0 0 r) 0 0 1) 1) 0

Nct 0 0 0 t) .15,)r) I ll.l6 0 0 l) 0 45991{i16

l'.trtiLulars

\er

r)

Lcss: I'rrvision lbr
deprccixtion rnd NPI

22TJS

II

| ,, o r 0 t950

l

0 olol olo
00 o ] 4sxxoxq(, I r, ,, ] {) (, | 4s8898q6 

|

0

(, 'l r, 0 rr r, 0 il
I

I

1599 i46 0



b) Movement of Proyisions for Dcpreciation and Investmenl f'luctuation Reserve

Rs in 000's

C Iosing balancc in IFR as a pcrcentage ol closing balance of
invcstments in AFS and HF'f/Cur.rcnt category

During the ycar ended 31,' March 2024, there was no transl'cr of invesrments to/from HTM

category and there was no sale oflnvestments from HTM category. (No transfer ofinvestments

to/from HTM category and no sale of Investments l.rom HTM category during thc year cnded

3I" March 2023).

d) Non-Sl-R I nvestment Portlblio

i) Non-nertbrmine Non-SLR Investmen s

The Bank is not holding any Non-Perforning Non-SLR [n'estments as on i l.r March 2024

and as such' nothing is to bc reponed under this segmenr. (Thc Bank did not hord any Non-

Perfomring Non SLR lnvestments as on 3l.r Mar 2021).

i)

a

Movemcnt of Provisions held towards deprcciation on invcsttnents

Pa rticu lars (-'urronl Vo, r Prcvious Ycar

Add: Provision rnadc during the vcal

Opcning Balance

b

c Lessi Write Ol?Write-back ofcxcess provisions during the year

d Closing Balancc

ii) Movenlent o f lnvestmcnt Flucluation Rcscrvc

Opening Balancell 2l4t{3

b 1.1559 2l,r8-I

c

d

Less: Draw down

Closing Balancc 180.12 23481

iii) 0.04,% 0.05%

39

I sr. I

l.."l
I

l

I

l

Add: Amount ransferred during the yearI

I

l

I

I l
c) Sal( and lranslers t',/lrom Il I \l cat(gor\



ii) Issucr comoosition of Non SLR lnvcstmcnts

e) Repo'I'ransactions (in I'ace value tcrms)

Fv 2023-21

Rs in 000's

(Rs in 000's)

Sr.

No.
Tssrrcr n rnount

F,xtenl o1'

Privatc
P lacenrent

Extent of
'Below

Investment
Crade'

Sccuritics

Extcnt ol
'Unratcd'
Securities

Extcnt of
'tJnlisted'
Securities

I 4 5 7

(i) PS Us Nil r-il Nil Nit Nil
(ii) FIS Nit Nil Nit N'il Nil
(iii) Banks Nil NiI Nil Nil Nil

(i, ) NiI Nil Nil Nit Nil

(\ ) Nil Nil \il Nit \lil

(r'i) Othcrs Nil Nil NiI Nil Nil

(vii)
Pror ision heid
towards
dcpreciation

Nil

Total \il Nir Nit f,{ il Nil

l'x rticulars

)linimum
outstanding
during the

I rar

M aximu m

outstanding
during thc vear

Daily Avcrage
outstanding

during thc vear

Outstanding
as on March

31.2024

Securities sold undcr repo
i. Covemnrcnt sccuritics 840151I
ii. Corporate debt securities

iii. Any other securities

Sccurities purchased under
reYerse repo

i. (;olelnmcnt sccurilics I 26li3 74 5 400 t6lJ

iii. Any other securities

3s

=

I

IPrivatc I

Corporates It- l
Subsidiaries / I

.loint Ventures 
]

t 1-
+

I

l-
206il44 

|

I

I

+ lii. Coryorate debt sccurities
l



FY 2022-23

Rs in 000's

-1. Derir atives

a. Forward rate agreement/ Interest rate swap

b. Exchange traded interest rate derivatives

c. Disclosure on risk cxposurc in derivatives

d. Credit Default Swaps

The Bank has not done any transactions in Dcrivatives and as such. nothing is to be reported

in this scgmcnt. Therc are no transactions under this segmcnt in thc previous year also.

4, Asset Ouality

a. Classification ofadvances and provisions held.

b. Sector wisc Advances and Oross NPAS

c. Overseas assets, NPAs and revenue

d. Particulars ofresolution plan and restructu ng

e. Divergence in asset classification and provisioning

i Disclosure oftmnslcr ofloan cxposurcs

g. Fraud accounts

h. Disclosure under Rcsolution F'ramework for COVID-19 rclated Stress

Thc Bank falls undcr the catcgory of "Paymcnts Bank" and is not allowcd to do Lending. As

such. disclosures rcquiring Asscts Quality including Non-Pertbnning Advances. Restructuring,

Divergence and l'raud accounts are not applicable to thc Bank.

Pa rtic ula rs

Minimum
outstanding
during the

J"car

Maximum
outstanding

during the ) ear

Daily Ave rirge

outstanding
during the Ycar

Outstanding
as on l\Iarch

31. 2023

Securities sold under repo

i. Govemrncnt scculities 2 620 8,15 109421

Colporate dcbt securitics

Anv olher securities

Securities purchased undcr
reverse repo

i. Governrnent seculities 42562t7 49 t544 265 r550

ii. Corporate debt securities

3d

I

-_ -

iii. Any other securities

I



5. Ex Dosu res

The following details are requircd under Exposure Disclosure

a. Exposure to real estate sector

b. Exposure to capital market

c. Risk category-wise country exposure

d. Unsecured advances

e. Factoring cxposures

f. lntra-groupexposures

g. Unhcdgcd forcign currency exposure

The Bank falls undcr the catcgory ol "Paymcnt Banks" and is not allowed to do l,ending. As

such, disclosures relating to Exposure is not applicable

6. Disclosure of oena es inrposed bv Rlll:

RBI has not imposcd any pcnalty on thc Bank during rhe year cndcd 3 lst March, 2024. (RBl

had not intposed any penalty on the Bank during the year ended 3 l,' March 2023).

Break up ofTotal Dcpreciation fbr cach class olthc assets

(Rs in 000's)

Class of Asscts 3 r .0.1.202-l

92180 5145 9

Other Fixcd Assets 822.192 221206

Total 911672 ?71665

3 t.03.2024

17

7. Deoreciation on Fixcd Assets:

Computcr Softwarc



il. MaturitY pattern of certain items ol Assets and Liabilities

88394,193
NII- NII-

45991846

Frgrrt'sgirlrr in the c'Lll hchtu urt, lt)t thr pre\t)l\ lintttciol tt,tr

Nole :

8U 46
,1| 0

Dcposits: In line with thc RBI guidclines on Assct Liability Managerncnt. the
withdrawal pattern of the Current / Savings deposit as on 3I'r March 2024 has been
classified in thc appropriatc buckets on thc basis of behavioural study approvcd by the
Board ofthe Bank.

Investments / Advances / Borrowings: These are bucketed as per the respective r.esidual
maturity pattcrn.

Maturitv
Pattern [)c pos it s Adrances

(Rs in 000)

I ni'cstnrcnt Borroll ings

17067.1.1
Ncxt Day

913157
N . NII, N _

li 1,16

,1110

2-7 days
2558114

NII- NIL NIL
3 72 51i92

\II NIL

55 I 9,10 r
8-14 days \II, N . NIL

148651
t5.17079

Ntt_

6,157552
l5-30 days

3 t 54712
N tt. Nlt,

495841'73l days to 2

rnonths (r01065 N II-

Nlt_ NIL

NIt, NILttzzus--1

3469'.7 5 t

1095596

7629030
NII-

5050728Over 2

months to 3

months 709763
).1 .

^" 
IL

Ntt_Over 3

months to 6
months 4 5

NII- NII,

Over 6
months to I

Year
N II- N II-

N.I I- NIL

N II- NIL

Nlt_ NIL
l94t t49l

I 761 1052

17 6 t2t9

3 80211 r 7

t3098223

8 695 (r00

NIL

86996698Over I Ycar'
to J Years 5l1.r99+6 NIL

Over 3

Ycars to 5
Years

NII NIL

Over 5

Ycars
\II

\1tr_

NII,

NII

NIL NIL

N II- NIL

NIL NIL

62t4t I

\II,

I 01950

-1723

NIL
NII- NII-

r 15521920 8346
62 92 3 5li5 :lll0

3g

8. Asset Liabilit\ )lanascmrnt

I Forrign Forcign
Currtncv Crr rrencv

Assets I-iabilities
8116

4n0 l
I +a:z:zr 

]

28,10073

[1"'



b. Liquiditv Coyeragc Ratio (LCR)

l'he disclosurc regarding Liquiditv Covcrage Ratio is not applicable tbr Paymcnrs Bank as pcr
the RBI circular on Basel III Framework on Liquidity Standards, Liquidity Covcragc Ratio
(LCR) issued vide RBI/2019-20/217/DOR.BP.BC.No.65/2 t.0.1.098/2019-20 dated t7,i Aprit
2020.

Nel Stable l.'unding Ratio (NSFR)c

l he disclosure regarding Net Stable Funding Ratio as nol applicable for PaymeDts Bank as per
lhc RBI circular on Basel lll Framework on t-iquidiry Stantlards - Net Stable Funding Ratio
(NSFR) issued vide RBI/2020-21i95rDOR.No.t.RG.BC.40/21.04.098/2020-2 t dated 5,r,

February 202 I .

9. 'I he Elfccts of changes in l'orcig n Ercha nge Rates -.\ccountirg Strndard I I

Bank has cntercd into agreement with Mi s. Continental Flxchange Solutions lnc. (Ria Financial
Sewices) and M/s. Westcm Union Financial Seryiccs Inc. USA under Moncy Transfer Servicc
Scherre (MTSS). In this connection. Bank had received a collatcral dcposit in Foreign
Currency. This amount is kept with State Bank of India and is shown undcr .,Currenr Deposits
uith Banks". The corresponding liability is shown under ,'Other Liabilities Others,'.
Conversion to INR is madc as per FEDAI guidclincs.

'l'he corrcsponding lNR,,,aluc is as belorv

Rs in 000)
I'x rticulars 31.03.2024 3r.03.202.1

Collateral Deposir undcr MTSS

I l. o ee Bcnc untin Stand

A) Gratuity:

During the ycar, Bank has purchased annuities worth Rs.6.79 crore from Life lnsurancc
Corporation of India based on actuarial valuation as on 3l '' Dccember 2023 (Rs 4.60
crore during FY 2022-23). Bank has lurther made a prorision of Rs.10.67 crorc for
Gratuity based on actuarial valuation as on 31.'March 2024.'fl.te total arnount of

] r'.346 ] +rrol

10. Government Grants Utilization - Accounting Standard l2

Bank has not rcceived Grant-in-aid during F\ 2023-24 and L-y 2022-23. There was no
unutilised amount of Grant-in-aid as on i I .03.202,1 and 3 L03.202i.

,l



a

Rs.17.46 srorc is chargcd to Profit and Loss accounr during FY 2023-24 (Rs 4.60 crore
during FY 2022-23)

During the year. Bank has made a provision of Rs.1li.81 crore for encashment oi
Privilegc Leave by employecs based on actuarial valuation. This amollnt is charged to
Prollt and Loss accounl during FY 2023-24. (Rs.l 8.94 crore during Fy 2022-23)

The summarized position ot various dcfincd bencfits recognized in the profil and Ioss

account and balancc sheet alongwith the firnded status arc as under:

Changes in the present Yalue of obligations

lls. in 000's

b. Changc in thc fair value ol plan asscts:

Rs. In 000's
Pa rtic ulars

Fajl valLrc of plan asscr at lhe bcginning ol'
itf

Asset l ranst'cr In,'

.1t 39 NA

Crat uitv l.eaYe Encash ment
2022-23 2023-21 2022-23

47 0136 3i3li0Prcsent Valuc of Obligation as ar rhc

Particulars

bcginnin t ol'thc ycar

lni(Ou1)Liability Transfcr

Interest Cost i0087 3 5.r 99 2,1E 86
Past Servicc Cost 3601 82

34479 399013 t05854 94831{

Scttlentcnt C ost i Crcdit

Current Service Cost

(64218) (56823 )

69705
Prcsent Value of Obligation as at thc end

Actuaria on obligations

of the ear
,100090

74288

529t52
46E54

594605 4107 36

Lt,:aYr Encash ment

2023-24 2022-232023-24 2022-23
.1t I r60

Ex cctcd Rclum on PIan Assets 28012 NA
Enr lcr crs Contributions 6,12 3 ['] 5 6824
Bcnefit Paid

NA
NA( 96et ) (64238) (56824 )

Ya

5006 l2 ,11 i 160

B) Lca\e l:nc shmcnt:

I __. | 2023-24

.100090 +
rl

Cunailrnent Cost / (Credit) I -

I eenents paid ] (qoqz)

I

(; ral uitY

/

t-

N^l

l(oul)

u991

, Actuarial Grin i losslun Plan nssr.ts I
I Farr raluc olplan asscrs ar rhe clrd ot ygar 

]

_:l
- | -l



c Expenses rccognized in Profit and Loss Account

Expenses Recognized in the statement of
Prolit & Loss

.In 000's

106701 ,100090

d. The amount recognizcd in thc Balancc Shect

Pa rticulars l,eave Encashnr(nf

529.252 400090

500.612 413160

(28640) [070

Net Asset / (Liability) Recognized in
Balance Shect

(28640)

e. ActuarialAssumptions
Principal assumption uscd tbr actuarial valuation are

Pa rticulars [-rr\ c E ncashmrnt
2023-21 2022-23 2[23-21 2022-23

Discount Rate 7 .23% 7 .23y;
Rate ofincrcase in Corr nsalion levels r09; 10"/o l0%, t0,to
Rate ofRctum on Plan Assets 6.78t^

74.10

NA

24. r0

NA

l5.l t

Gratuil

NA

25.

Pa rtic u ln rs (;ratuitY Lcave Encashmcnt

2022-23
Current Selvice Cost

2022-23
j4479 3990ri

2023-21

10585.1 9483 8

Pasl Service Cost 3601 E2

30087 -15 i 99 2.18 8 6

ccted Return or) Plar Assels

Curtaihrent Cost / Crcd it

Ex

lntercst Cost

(2!.012)

Setllement Cost l Credit
Nel actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the
year

70 r.l9 .1685 5 69705

I E8108

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Prescnt Valuc of Obligation as at thc cnd 1107 365 9,1605

(59460s )

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of
thr' at-

Unleco l losscszed Actuarial llt s

Funded Status

[070

11,|

I

I

,tr::l

- 1B!.JnlQoo's)
Gratuitv

of the vear I

(4 70 73 6)

I

t_-t
(5e460s) 1+707-16 r I

t

Arerape [ulure srrviee (in Years)
I

7 .52vo



12. Relatrd Party Disclosurrs Accourtins Standard l8

Remuncration paid to Kcv Managemcnt Pcrsonnel
Rs in 000

Particulars
Remuneration paid to Directors

Renruneration paid to MD & CEO

Rcmuneration paid to Conlpany Secrctary

As per para 9 read together uith para 10.13 of AS-l{l issued by tCAl regarding no
disclosure is required in the financial statements of state-controlled enterprises as

regards related pany relationships \,!ith other state-controlled enterprises and
transactions with such cnterprises. hencc lransactions ntade between IPPB with Dop is
not required to bc disclosed howcver, rlajor transaclions,/ nature ol'transactions with
DoP is disclosed undcr Pnra 35 belorv.

13, Sesment Dortins Accountins Standard 17

ln tcnns of the AS-t7 (Segment Reporting) issucd by Institute of Chartcred

Accountants of India and RBI circular Ref. DBOD.No. BP.BC.81/21.04.01812006-01

datcd ltt April 2007 read with DBR.BP.BC No.23l21.04.0 t 8/2015- t6 datcd 0t July

201-5 and amendments thereto, the Business Segments" which is the Primary Segment

includc:

r Treasury Operations

r Retail Banking Opcrations

Income. expenses, assets and liabilities have been eithcr specifically identified to

individual segmcnt or allocated to segments on a reasonable basis or are classified as

unallocated.

The Gcographical scgmcnts are rccognizcd as the Secondary Scgment. 'l'he business ol
the Bank does not extend outside lndia and it does not have ary assets outside India or

camings emanating fiom outside lndia. Accordingly, lhe Bank has not rcported any

geographic segments

Y}

Fy 2023-21 FY 2022-23
5 505 1070

7921 708i
Remuneration paid to CFO

I

f160 |

2064 |

32s8 
|

le28 
|



Rs in 000

Part B Geographic Scgmcnts

As the Bank is operating only in India, geographic segment is not required to be reponed.

L

Prrt A: Busincss Segnrcnts
Year llnded
3 t.03.2024

Year Ended
-3 1.03.2023

SNo

I

b) Corrrorate/Wholcsale Bankin g

Particulars

Scgnrcnl Rcvcnuc
a) Tlcasrr 1090203

).llL
897750

NIL
61611s2c) Rctail Bankins

d) Othcl tiankinq Opcrations
I t 5627 06

NIL NIL
Total t2652909 7661502

Scglncnt Results
10 849a) Trcasury

b) Corporate,/Wholcsalc Bank ins NIL
c) Retail Banking

ii l0tt6
NIL

817640 229021
NtL NILd) Othcr Banking Opcrations

918726 259876'f otal
Unallocated Expenscs NIL NIL

9lit726 2591{76Operating Profit
582675 76348

NII-!l Extraordinary
Expcnditure)

Itcm (Prior Period
Provisions

vll Net Prollt

NIL

r423?8
Othcl Infonration

20 t609

\ lu Segrnent Assets
r682 I 705 14250156a) Trcasury

b) CorporatetWholcsale Bank ing NIL N II,
c) Rctail Banking r t91t0-5923 6l 9569.+9

d) Othcr Bankinr Operations NII, NIL
Sub l otal 136627 628 16201205

NILe) Unallocatcd Assels
'[ otal Assets

NII-
)366?7628 76207205

t\ Scgrncnt Liabilities
I t712141 8929'7 66

Nlt. N II-
r24ri5548,+ 6'/2'/1439

rporate/'Wholesale Bank i ng

d) Other Banking Operations

a) Trcasury

c) Rctarl flankin
NIL NIL

Sub l'otal t 36627628 16201205
c) Unallocated Liabilities NIL

'l otal Liabilitics
NIL

ll6(r27628 16201205

a

L

It.

1



1,1. Accountins for Leases - Accountins Standard l9
The total amount paid by the Bank under cancellablc operating lease for the financial

year is Rs.0.l5 Cr (Previous year: Rs. 0.22 Cr). Thc Bank has not entcred into any non_

cancellable operating leasc and financial lease arrangemeflt in the current year and in

the previous year.

(Rs in 000)

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.202-l
The total of'luture minimurn lease paylrents under
non-cancellable opcrating leases lor each of thc
lbllowing periods

a) Not latcr than onc year

b) Later than one ycar but not later than fivc years

1917 )474

c) Later than live ycars

Total Expected future Iease payment 6300 117 4
Lease payment recognized in the statemcnt of profit
and Loss for the pcriod

2220

Nominal Valuc ofShare Rs. l0 each Rs. l0 each

t93?671233 15908904 I I

16. Accountins for Taxcs on lncomc - Accountins Stand ard 22

The Bank has recognized defeued tax assets and liability as per accounring policy.

The Defcrred rax Asset on Accumulated Iosses recognized in Fy 20rg-r9 and Fy 2019-20
was reviewed and a considered conse.vative view has been taken to retain the same arter
adjusting the profit 1br thc year. Accordingry, the 'carry forward loss' component of Deferrcd
Tax Assets and Liabilities shown below as on 31.03.2024 represents the Defe*ed rax Assets
recognized in FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 as reduced by profit lor Fys 2022 -23 and 2023-24

S No. Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
EPS - Basic/Diluted (in Rs ) 0.18 0. l3

u Alnount used as numerator
Profit/(Loss) (after tax) (Rs in 000)

3,1237ir

url

15. Earninss Per Share - Accounting Standard 20

20 t 609

C

D Wcightcd a\ crage 
,nultber 

ul eOuirl 
II shares u"ed as llte denorninarrrr

4323

t 471



Major components of Defcrred Tax Asscts arc se1 out below

l 2,101 20 1568877

17. Accountin lbr In\ rstmcnts in /\ssoc iates in Consolidated Financial Statements -

Delcrred Tax Assets

Particulars

Provision tbr Lcavc Encashnrcnl
eciation on F-ixed AssetsD

C Foru ard Loss
t'7 t718
t t2507

I361,19

103306
'l'otal r 52.1345 r 8083-12

Deferrcd Tax Liabilities
Dclerred Tax Assets et 15243,15 t 8083-12

Accounting Standard 23

The Bank does not havc any Subsidiaries/ Associates and as such, no disclosure is requircd
under this segment.

18. Imoairmcn of Assets - Accou ntins Standard 28

In thc opinion olthe Bank s managcment. there is no indication olthc itnpaiment to thc assets
as on 31'r March 2024 to which the Accounting Standard 2S "lrnpairmcnt of Assets" applics.

19. Disclosure o Status of comoltints a d unimDlcrnented a$ard s of Bankin{r
0mbudsman

Particulrrs
Complaints received bl the Bank liom its customers

No of conrplaints pending at the bcginning ot'rhe ycar
No ofconrplaints reccivcd during the Year

No of complaints disposcd during the vcar

Of which, number of complaints rejected by the

Bank

No of complaints outstanding at the end of thc year
l\Iaintainable complaints reccived b1-' thr Bank from OBC)s

Number of maintainable complaints rcceivctl by the Bank
frnrn C)BC)s

Of 5, numbcr of cornplaints rcsolvcd in favour of thc
Bank by Bos

Of 5. number olcomplaints resolvcd through
concil iation,/rncdiation/advisorics issucd bv BOs
Of 5, number of complaints rcsolvcd aftcr passing

ol'Awards by BOs against the Bank

Nur.nber of Au'ards unimplemented within the

stipulated timc (othcr thaD rhosc appealed)

Current
Year

Previous

Year

u22 )11

t 293

Sl No

17825

..1

l6tr0
t 622t)

l

.l735,1

-r329 172

s2l

5

5.1 271 2(N)

5.2 29

5.3 Nil NiI

6 \i1 \it

(Rs in 000)
3t.03.2024 3 r.03.2023

l

I

I

-l---- t----
I

!L E
ror 

] r.,5 ]



Top grounds of complaints received b], the Bank from customers

Crounds of
complaints, (i.e.

complaints relating
to)

Internet/Mobilc
Ban k ingllll(jctron ic

Othcrs

\umber ol'
comphints
pendirg at

the beginning
of thc vcar

\umber of
cornplaints

rcceived
during the

!'ca r

%, increase/
dccrcase in the

nunrbcr of
complaints

rcctived oyer the
previous year

Number of
complaints
pending al
the end of
the vcar

of 5.
number of
complaints

pending
bcyond 30

davs

2 I

54.1tt'/r

t

4,10

59 t

8ll

31.03.2024

6

0

I{s in 000

Current Ycar 12023-21)

i 0548

52 I6

- t 8 .22'y,,

0

1

c)

6l ,s61 1

-l 
otal 211 16780

I'arliculars

Provision towards Inconrc 'l'ax

\6

- l 6.l 9/0

'lbtal

Tarill'Schcdulc &
Scrvicc C hargcs

196.760.'0

,19(r. I I '11, 784 0

Othcrs

-l'otal

200

0

0

0

69

1293

591

821

2061 -63.27%

i7825 t25.42%

Previous ;'-ea r (2022-2 J)

r0294 -13.41%

Banki

Intemet/Mobilc
Banking/Electronic

Taritf Schcdule &
Service Chargcs

it 75 7 0

0

31.03.2023
I)rovision towards NPAs (ncl) NIL NIL
Pror ision towardi Standird Assels \IL NIL

NIt- NIL
5U267Provision touards Dclcrrcd fa\

Provision tol," ards Frauds

283987

23500 NIL
Ptovision towards DoP I-I' 2.0 268861 NIL
Other Provisions & Contingencies NtL NIL

576348 58267

Ba nk ing

I

20. ]lrcak up ol "Proririonr and ( ontingencicr"

I



21. Concentration of Dcposits. Advanccs. Exposure and NPAs:

Concentratiol'r oi' Dcposits

(Rs in 000)

Particulars 3r.03.2024 111.0t.2023
'fotal Deposit ofTwenty largest depositors 9232 6164

Percentagc of Dcposits of twenty largest

dcpositors to 'fotal Deposits of the Bank

0.0080,/o 0.0098%

a)

b. Conccnlrillion ol Adr rnce:

Concentration of exposules

d. Concertration of NPAs

There are no u[claimed deposits, which are matured and oulstanding for morc than l0 ycars.

As such, no amount was eligible to be transferred to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund
(DEAF) during the financial year.

23. Disclosures on Remuneration

A. Qualitative Disclosure

The current remuneration offered is a competitive package and is designcd to attract the
required and qualjty talent. The salary structure for officers in various scale at lndia Post

Payments Bank (IPPB) is govenred by the service rules of Bank. The remuneration is in line
with the salary structurc tbllowed by Public Scctor Banks.

Employees on deputation at IPPB are governed by thc Bank's Deputation Policy and thc
Dcpaftment of Personnei and Training (DOPT) guidelincs. Thc cmployees on deputation havc
thc option to choose bctwccn Pay at their parent Organisation and IPPB Pay.

Thc rcmuneration offercd to MD& CEO who is considcrcd as thc material risk taker includcs
fixed pay in line with 7th CPC and variable pay as approvcd by thc Board. The salary adheres
to the Department of Personnel and Training (DOPT) guidelines and is approved by the RBl.

)

The Bank t'alls under the category of
"Paymcnt Banks" and is not allowcd to

do Lending. As such, disclosures

relating to Concentration of Advances/

Exposurc. NPA5 unrj Pror ision

Coverage Ratio is Not Applicable

Thc Nomination Remuneration Committcc of the Bank was constituted on 28 , June. 201 7 in
accordancc with provisiors of Section 178 of the Cornpanies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder. The Committee has llve mcmbers rvith Ms. Jayshree Vrajlal Doshi. hdependent
Dircctor as Chaiman. Key mandatc of the Nomination & Remuncratiol comrnittcc is tr-r

Rccommend appointrncnt of Part-time Chainlan. MD & CEO and thcir tcrms of appointment
and remuneration. Managing Director and Chicf Executive O1ficer (MD&CDO) is considere d
as Matelnl Risk ta[.er of the Bank.

22. Transl'er to Depositor Ilducation and Awareness Fund (DEAF)



'I ype of
Disclosure

I nlbrmation [,'Y 202]-2,1 Fv 2022-23

Quantitative
Disclosures
(covering

Whole
'Iime

lJirectors/

Chief
Executive

Officer/
Material
Risk

Takers)

Gcncral

Quantitative
Disclosure

a Numbcr of meetings held by thc Nomination
and Remuncration Committee during the

flnancial year and rernuneratjon paid to its

rrcmbers.

5

(Sitting Fce

Rs.2.20

lakhs)

I

(Sitting I--cc

Rs.0.30

lakhs)

l-l (i) Numbcr of cmployces having rcccived a

variable remuneration award during the

financial year.

(ii) Number and total amount of sign-

on/joining bonus made during the financial
year.

(iii) Details of scverancc pay, in addition to

accrued benefi ts. if any.

Nil

Nil

Nit

Nil

Nit

Nit

c (i) Total amount of outstanding deferred
rcmuneration, split into cash, sharcs and

share linked instruments and other fonns.
(ii) Total amount ol' dcfcrred rcrrrurrcrarron

paid out ir the frnancial year.

\il

Nil

79.21 lakhs

(Fixcd)

Nil

Nit

d Breakdown of amount of renrurreration

a'*ards for the tlnancial ycar to show tixed
and variable. delerred and nondetirred.

c ).tit

Nil

Nit

Nil

Nil

Nit

f Onc Onc

B. OuantitativeDisclosure

(i) Total amount of outstanding deferred
rcrnuneration and rctained rcn)uneralion

exposed to ex post cxplicit and / or implicit
adjustments.
(ii) Total amount of reductions during the

financial year due to ex post explicit
adjustments.
(iii) Total amourt of reductions during the

financial year due to cx post implicit
adjustments.

Number of MRTs identified
(i) Number of cascs where malus has been

cxercised.
(ii) Number of cases where clawback has

bccn exer:iscd.
(iii) Number of cases u,here both rnalus and

clau,back havc bcen cxcrcised.

The mcan pay lor Ihc Bank as a whole
(excluding sub-staff') and the deviation of the

pay oleach of its wTDs fiom th!- mcan pay.

70.83 lakhs

(Fixcd)

Nit Nit

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

t4g

Rs.l.32 lakhs Rs.1.2.1 lakhs

l

I

I



24. Disckrsu s relating to Sccu ritization

l'he Bank falls under the category ol "Paymenr Banks" and is nor allowcd ro do Lending. As
such, Bank has not undcrtaken any transactions rclating to Sccuritizarion.

25. Other Disclosures

a. Busincss Ratios

Pa rt icu la rs

Commission camcd from Distribution of Lifc
Insurance Products

Commission earned frorn Distribution of Non-Lif'e
lnsurance Products

Commission camcd fl-om Distriburiou ol'PMJJBY

l\l a rketing & Distribul ion

Non-lntcrcst lrrcorne as a perccntage to Working l.Lrrrds

b. Disclosure in resp('ct ol Bancassurancc Business

(Rs in 000)

Particu la rs FY 2023-24

C

Particulars I Y 2023-24
(lommission earned frorn Distlibution of Mutual I-untl I)rodrrcfs 6

(Rs in 000)

iJl

31.0-1.202.1 3l.0-1.2023

ii)
5.60%

6.06%

,1. I I 'li,
7.t1,'1,

]lr) Cost of Dcposits

Net Intcrcst Margin
2.Oloh 2.02,)/,,

iv) 5.|% 3. -s 9,ri,

\') Operating Profit as a percenlage to Working Funds 0.ii5% 0.38,%
vi) Retum on Assets

Business (Dcposit plus advances) per employee (lls in lakls)
0.32%
()6.1 6ll

0. t 0,h,

vii) 356.7 r

viii) Proiit/ (l-oss) per cmploycc ltts in lakhs) \ .97 t.t,l

t75899 l4 I 04,1

98035

646

1348i9

810

Fy 2022-23

C'omlnissiolt carnccl frorn [,oan Ilcf'erral

Y9

Ioli 7 2l6l

I 
,, 

iGtercst lncornc o. u p"r..nrug" ro working Funds l

1. For the purpose ofcomputing the ratios, u,orking lund represcnt thc monthly average
oftotal assets (excluding accumulated losses, ifany) computing for thc reporting
dates of Form X submitted 10 RBI under section 27 of the Banking Rcgulation Act.
1949.
Operating Profit is the profit for the year bcforc provisions and contingencies.
Productivity ratios are bascd on nLrmber of employees as on the cnd of the finarrcial
year.

1 Fy Nirq I

-

Il.
iii.



The Bank falls under thc category o[ "Payorent Banks" and is not allowed to do Lending. As
such, disclosures rclaling to Exposure is not applicable

c. Implemcntation of IFRS convcrgcd India r\ccounting Standards (lnd AS)

RBI vide Notificarion no DBR. BP.BC.N o.29121.01 .0O1i2ltii- 19 da(cd 22103/20t9 dst'errcd

implcmentation of Ind AS till further notice. As pcr guidelines. the Ilank is submirring lnd AS
profbrma to RIll on a half ycarly basis. Bcing a Payn]clrrs Bank and bascd on the prcsent

business model. IPPB is not expecting any major challengc in implenrcntation ollnd AS.

f. Rtward Points of Crcdit Card & Dcbit Card

The Bank has not issued anv Credit card and it docs not havc any reward point structurc on its
Virtual Debit Card. As such, thc disclosure regardiug Debit/ Crcdit card is not applicable

g. Payment of DICGC lnsurance Prrmiunr

(Rs in 000s)

il Paymcnt ol Dl('(iC lnsurance Prenriunt 5049

Ancars in paymcnt ol'DICCC premium

Disclosure on amortization of expenditurr on account of enhancement in
family pension of cmployees of Banks.

As pcr thc salary structure lbllowed. Bank docs not havc any liability towards Family pension.
As such. this disclosure is not applicable.

h

o

d. Disclosurc regrrding Prioritr" Sector Lending Certificates (PSl,Cs)

As per RBI circr.rlar RBI/2015- l61315 DBR.BP.BC. No.76l21.07.001/2015- l6 dated February
11. 2016. Irnplerncntation of Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS), Banks were advised that
scheduled commercial banks (excluding RRUs) shall follow thc lndian Accounting Standards

as notified undcr the Conrpanics (lndian Accounling Standards) Rulcs,20l5. subjcct to any

guideline or dircction issued by thc Rescrve Bank in this regard. Banks in India currently
prepare thcir financial statemcnts as per the guidclines issucd by RBI, the Accounting
Standards notified under section 133 ofthe Act and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
in lndia (lndian GAAP). ln January 2016, the Minisrry ofCorporate Affairs issued the roadrnap

for implemcntation of ncw Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), which wcrc bascd on

convcrgencc with the lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). lbr scheduled
commcrcial banks. insurancc cornpanics and non-banking linancial conrpanics (NBIrCs).

Sl \o Particulars F\'2023-2d ts\',2022-23

n2 54ll

b.
I I 1



R

i. Dues to Small and Nlicro Industries

Undcr thc Micro. Small and Mcdium Enterprises De\elopnrcnt Act, 2006, certain disclosures

are required to be made relating delay in payments to Miclo and Small enterprises. There is no

dclay in paymcnts to micro or small enterprisc. As such, there is no interest liability.

Based on Rtsl "Financial Statements Presentation and Disclosures Directions 2021

Disclosure of material items" dated I 3'h l)cccmber 2022. thc particulars ofmajor hcads of items

are given below

a. Commission, Exchange and Brokerage (Schedule l4)

Major itenrs included under the subhead "Commission, Exchange and Brokerage" in "Schedule

l4 - Other Income" excccding one pcrccnt of Total [ncomc is as below

Rs in 000s

Inconrc li-om FY 2022-23

2.122592Account Manaqcnrcnt Sen'iccs
lncome frorr AcPS

Citizen Scrviccs 68(XX) I I I 8.108u

2679 r 5

r 89861

2 789.19

F\',2021-2d
l9ll7l 5 I

506ii0 t

Direct Benefit'l'ransttr 30ll I I

Third Palt Distlibution 117183

b. Miscellan€ous lncome (Schedule l4)

There are no items under the subhead "Miscellaneous Income" under the head "Schedule l4 -
Other lncome" which exceeds onc percent of Total Incornc. Hence, this disclosure is not

applicable.

Other Expenditurc (Schcdule l6)c,

Bank is already disclosing major expcnses as separatc line item under Schedulc 16. As such,

there are no items under the subhead "Other Expenditure" under "schedule I6 Operating

Expenscs" which exceeds onc percent of Total Expcnses. Hcnce, this disclosure is not

applicable.

26. Brerk up of \{aior Ilcxds in Financial Statcnrrnts

701212 344205

Rcmittance Inconre

I



,a

d. Other Liabilitics and Provisions - "Others (including pror,isions)"

Provision lbr Ex enscs/ Pa ablc to Vendors

e. Other Assets - "Others"

Major itenrs under the subhead "Others" under "Schedule I I Other Assets" which exceeds

one percent ofTotal Assets is as below.

Rs in 000s

Particu la rs
NEFT/ RTGS Settlcrncnt 2246519

The disclosure is not applicablc for Payrncnts Banks and as such nothing is rcquired to bc

reported under this segment.

Other Notcs:

28. Description ol Contineent Liabilities (Schedule 12)

a) Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts. rcpresents claims filcd by certain

ernployees & vcndors in thc nonnal coursc of business.

b) Disputcd Tax Liabilities reprcscnts demand w.r.t. GS'l raised wherc Bank has filcd

appeals.

c) Others represents the amount of Bank Guarantee issued by State Bank of lndia on

behall of IPPB favouring Unique ldentification Authority of India (UIDAI) valid till
November 2027 secured 100% by way ol Fixed Deposits.

31.03.202,1

4 r ti258u
I1.03.2023

231 I 307

-11 .0.1.2024 I1.03.2021
li,lfilJ

(q
)cf

Major iterns included under the subhead "Others" in "Schedule 5 - Other Liabilities and

Provisions" exceeding one percent of Total Assets is as below

Rs in 000s

Pq4!qu!q!

27. Off Balance sheet SPVs soonsored (rvhich are required to be consolidated as oer
accounting norms).



29. Share Capital

During thc FY 2023-24, Bank has raised Equiry Sharc Capital of Rs.450 crores by rvay

ol Rights lssue of Equity Shares to President of tndia, of which Rs. 200 crores was

received during FY 2022-23 which was pending allotmcnt ofsharcs and is shown under

"Share Application Money Pending Allotment" in the Balance Sheet (Rs.200 crore

raiscd during FY 2022-23)

30. Salarr Rer ision as Der l2'h BiDartite Settlement

Bank follows the salary structure as decided by Indian Banks Association (lBA). As

per dccision ol the Board in thc meeting held on I 7'h May 2024, Bank made provision

against l2'r' Bipartitc Settlement, which was due from November 2022. Bank has made

an adhoc provision of Rs.69.U? crorc during the tlnancial year cndcd 3 lst March 2024

covering period from November 2022 to March 2024. The above provision includes an

amount ofRs. 19.83 crore pertaining to the pcriod from l.'Novembcr 2022 to Jln
March 2023.

-l I - Shorl-r erm I ntcrrst bearins .{d\ anre to Stal f

During F Y 2O2l-22, Bank had extended Shon-tcnn interest bearing Advance facility

to its staffout ofBank's own funds based on Board approved policy. This is in line ivith

RBI regulations as per "Operating Guidelines lbr Paymcnls Banks" datcd 6th October

20t6

32. Fired .\ sst t

32.I Fixed Asscts purchased out of Grant-in-Aid in F'Y 201 8- l9 is maintained in thc Fixed

Assets Register keeping a nominal value ofRe.l for identitlcation

32.2 Physical veritlcation of F ixed Asset as on I I '' March 2024 is undcr progress



33. Provision for Fraud

'l'he Bank has reportcd 3 cases of frauds in the Financial year ended March 3 l, 2024.

The Bank has provided for the expected loss arising from the frauds and does not have

any unamortized proyision.

Following are the details of fraud and provisioning thereon;

Rs in 000s

F\ 2023-24 Fy 2022-23
Nunlber of fiauds rcported 3 )
Amount involvcd in fraud

Amount of provision made for such frauds

23824

23 s00 Nit
Amount of Unamortised provision debited
from 'other reserves' as at the end of tlte
year

Nit Nil

During the ycar, the bank identified instances of misappropliation. The bank has taken

all appropriate actions and have reported thcsc cases to the concemed Law Enforcement

Agency (LEA) and matters are under investigation. Staff side action has also been

initiatcd. Alter conducting internal investigation bank has reported thcsc cases to RBI.

Some instances of embezzlements were identilled by Dcpartment ol Posts (DoP). As

per MOU between Bank and DoP. both organizations exchangc information to

investigate the cascs of such instances. In all these incidcnts of rnisappropriation,

information was provided to DoP as and when asked and DoP conducts the

investigation and repofiing based on thcir Policies and proccdurcs. ln these cases, thcrc

rvas no involvement ofBank's stal'f and no financial loss to the Bank or its customers.

As per MoU dated 04rr'November 2022, DoP shall act as the Corporate BC for IPpB

by providing all customcr facing serviccs of IPPB by lcvcraging its physical

inlrastructure of around 1.55 laki Post Ofilccs (as Access Points ofIPPB) and the

trusted manpower (which includes Postal Assistants, Postmen and GDS) who r,,r.ill also

work as End Users or last mile agents for providing sewices to the lppB customers in

line with the RBI guidclines and clarifications for cngaging BCs.

36236

34. Transactions with Department of Post (DoP)

34.1 DoP to act as tsusi[ess C]oresnondent:



For the above services of DoP, IPPB shall pay a cotnmission linked to the revenue

camed by IPPts through DoP and by the lasl mile agents including DoP stafl As pcr

MoU, the ratc of commission shall be bcnchmartcd to prcvalcnt malket ratcs and

practices.

The breakup of commission paid to DoP/ GDS (including provisions) charged to Profit

& [-oss Account is as be]ow.

Rs in 000s

Particulars [ \ 202-]-2,1

Comnr ission to l)oP 258295

Inccntive to GDS 1099629

14.2 Anrount given tr-r DoP Circlcs lbr fiurnishins/ Brandins of IPI'B Branches and Acccss

I 10526

161095

Points:

IPPB had transl'crrcd an amount of Rs 66.21i crorc to 23 Circlcs of Dcpartment of Posts

(DoP) in FY 2017-18 for lumishing IPPB Branches (Rs 16.81 crore) & branding at all

IPPB branches/ DoP acccss points viz Il.O., S.O. & B.O. (Rs 49.47 crore).

Bank has fufiher remitted an amount of Rs.3.76 clore to DoP towards

fumishing/renovation activitie s of IPPB offices. Bank has made a provision oi Rs.3.7l

crore during the fin ancral year 2023-24 against the amount outstanding for more than I

year.

34.3 Bank's Services to DeP tbr !T 2-0 Prqjrqli

Public Inveshnent Board (PIB) & Iixpenditure Financc Conrtnittee (EFC) meeting held

on 23 rd Novernbcr 202 I has rccomrnendcd Gradual sh itiing ol POSB serviccs lo I PPB

& Single IPPB structurc fbr Banking. Insurance and other financial needs. Further. it

was also rccomnrendcd that IPPB shall provide tT 2.0 rclated serviccs to DoP and DoP

shall reimburse the IT cost relating to DoP operations to IPPB on actual basis out of IT

(r-),

Tryzozz-li J

The bills/ refunds to thc tune of Rs.O.l7 crorc arc still rcccivable from l)oP as on

31.03.2024 and the same is shown as receivable under DoP (Capital Commitrnent).

Since thc amount is outstanding for more than 3 years, Bank has made provision for an

equal amount in thc Books of Accounts. Bank is regularly lbllowing up rvith DoP lor

obtaining remaining Bills/ Refurds referred above.



-

2.0 for cost relatcd Data Centrc, Data Reco!cry Centrc, Nctwork, Network (Scrvices),

Postal Life lnsurance etc. This was with a vierv to avoid duplication in lT inliastructure

cost by both organizations. It is also aimed at providing a more intcgrated. inclusive

tinancial and other services to the customers.

The above proposal was approved by lJnion Cabirret in Febmary 2022

To enablc the above dccision, IPPB has cntered into agreemcnts with vendors for the

senice under DoP lT 2.0 as rvell as ncw development rvork. Vendors raises rnvoices

on IPPB for thcir servises. IPPB rlade paymcnts to thcse vcndors out of its own funds.

As per PIB mandate, DoP is reirnbursing the arnount paid by IPPB on actual basis.

The amount of paid by IPPB on behalf of DoP, antount reimbursed by DoP and

reimburscment outstanding for reimburscment from DoP as on 3 I st March 2024 is as

below (exclusive of GST);

Rs in 000s

Closing Balance Receivable f'r'om DoP 9 52221 1081290

* The bolant'e receitable excludirtg GST antotottiDg to Rs.95.22 crorc is show undet.item lX
' Recettahle fion DOP under lT ) rJ"

Bank has made a provision of Rs.26.139 crore during the financial ycar 2023-24 on a

prudent basis under "Provisions and Contingencies" against the amount outstanding for

morc than I year.

To addrcss all the issues, the managcment of thc Bank and DOP is in the process of

finalising the MOU

34.4 ATM

The Bank has received Ownership of 999 ATMs during the FY 2022-23 from

M/s.lnfosys at a Nominal of Re.l cach which werc previously on leasc betwcen

t;\ 2022-23

Opening Balance receivablc tiorr DOP

Particulars FY 2023-24

108 I 290 \il
2151046Adcl: Total rnoLurt paid untlcr Dol'

Lcss: Amount Reimburscd by DoP 1599278 t 0127 56

{6

1,171)209



M/s.lnfosys and Dcpartment ofPost. Bank is rr.ranaging DoP ATM on as-is-basis. Bank

onboarded M/S AGS 'l ransacl Technologies Ltd as a managed service vendor through

open RFP and all the acquiring income from thcsc ATM is accountcd in DoP books

only. DoP accounts/ G[-'s are used for ATM transaction and reconciliation. IPPB is

managing the SLA, insurance claim, disputc managemcnt and vcndot invoice

processing.

-15. S\stem lntesrator (Sl) (lost:

IPPB awarded a contract to M/s EIT Services India Pvt. Ltd. and entercd into Master

Service Agreement (MSA) and Service Level Agreement (SLA) for implementation of

"dedicatcd and customiscd technology plattbrm" tbr an amount of Rs. 801 crorcs

(including GST).'thc contract period is 5 years effective from.luly 12,2018 with

completion on I 1.07.2023.

As per the agreement. the amount was due / payable within the contract period of 5

years bascd on the milcstoncs delivered i tult'illcd as per tcrms & conditions of the

agreement. Therefore, vendor also raises its invoices accordingly to IPPB i.e. as and

when the payrncnt becornes duc/payable on milcstonc lLrlfilled.

IPPB had capitalised the cost ,/ valuc of the hardwarc and software supplicd / delivercd

and put to use tbr arnounting to Rs. 106.32 crorcs and Rs. 240.46 crores respcctivcly

till 31" March 2019.

Since, vendor did not adhered with the timelines provided under the agreement and also

not provided defect frec serviccs. As a result, pcnaltics / liquidity damagc had been

levied / recovered from the contractor for such delays and lack of defect free

pcrformance. Hence, Bank had terminated thc contract vide termination notice dated

10.07.2023 and the bills raised by the contractor for Rs. 163.47 crores approx. have

bcen disputed and withhcld by the Bank. The bank charged penalty of Rs.62.27 crore

liom the vendor and has made provision of Rs. 101.20 crore (net of penalty) till 3l(
March 2023. Furthcr, the Performancc Bank Guamntcc (PBG) submitted by the vendor

amounting to Rs. 68.93 crores have also becn invoked by the Bank in Septerrbcr 2023.

This amount has been accounted under 'Sundly Account' pending outcome of the

litigation.

{7



The contractor had made several def'aults/non-cornpliance in complying with the terms

& conditions of thc agreement lcontract. Bank is revicwing the expected operational as

well as llnancial loss due to detaults/non-cornplianccs rtcnnination of contracr and if
tlccded a rccovcry suit rvill be filed against the contl actor.

36. Cornoratc Social ResDonsibility (CSR)

As per tlrc provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Bank is not

requircd to spend towards CSR irt the current financial year as the average ofthe last

threc ycar's profit is in negativc.

37. The Board of Directors approved for implementation of increase in sitting fee and

directed to seek clarification ftom the Administrative ministry in this regard. Provision

in thc books ol accounts has bccn made on thc basis ol rcviscd rate for Februarv and

March 2024.

38. Item no. (lV) ol'Schedule 5 "Other Liabilities and Provisions" includes an amount of

Rs.l.2l crorc under "Sundry Sweep Out l-ailed pool account" which includes the

customer balances exceeding the threshold limit of Rs. 2 Iakhs. As per the policy of the

Bank, Interest is bcing creditcd to the customcr on valuc datc basis.

39. Bank is in thc process of implenenting Vendor Managcmenr System lor tracking

rcndor-rvisc dctails which is handled manually at prcsent by rcspcctive departmcnts.

40. During the year, Bank has done ccrtain procurcmcnts on Nomination basis (including

for DoP IT 2.0. In these cases, the Bank/ DoP was already having licenses and werc

using thosc hardwalc/ software applications. I:r ordcr to have a busincss continuity and

to provide uninterrupted services by both IPPB and I)oP. tlre Bank has directly engagcd

v/ith the OEM (Original Equipment Manul'acturer) / OSD (Original So)ution

eg

The vcndor had approached the Honourable lligh Court of Delhi and Court vide its

dircction datcd 9'r' February 2024, reibrcd the mattcr lbr Arbitration through Arbitral

Tribunal. The matter is pending with Arbitral Tribunal.



Developcr). Thc nominations werc donc by tbllowing the duc process as mcntioncd in

the Procurement Policy of the Bank.

41. Figures of Previous year lrave been re-grouped and reinstated wherever necessary to

conform lo currcnt year classification.
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